Decisions of the Cabinet

14 November 2023

Members Present:-

Record of decisions taken at the above meeting

Members Present:-

Councillor Barry Rawlings (Chair) Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member – Resources and

Effective Council
Cabinet Member – Adult Social Car
Cabinet Member – Culture, Leisure, Arts and Sports
Cabinet Member – Community Wealth Building
Cabinet Member – Community Safety and Participation
Cabinet Member – Family Friendly Barnet
Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing
Cabinet Member – Environment and Climate Change
Cabinet Member – Equalities, Voluntary and Community Sector

Apologies for Absence

Councillor Ross Houston Cabinet Member – Homes and Regeneration

Also in attendance

Councillor Daniel Thomas Councillor David Longstaff Councillor Peter Zinkin

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Councillor Barry Rawlings, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources and Effective Council welcomed all attendees to the meeting.

It was RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 18 October 2023 be approved as a correct record.

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (IF ANY)

Apologies were received from Councillor Ross Houston, Cabinet Member – Homes and Regeneration.

3. DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS (IF ANY)

None.

4. QUESTIONS FROM NON-EXECUTIVE MEMBERS (IF ANY)

The Chair welcomed Councillor Peter Zinkin, Councillor David Longstaff and Councillor Daniel Thomas to the meeting.

Questions were raised in relation to agenda items 10, 11 and 16 which were responded to verbally at the meeting by Cabinet Members.

5. PETITIONS (IF ANY)

None.

6. DEPUTATIONS (IF ANY)

None.

7. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)

None.

8. MATTERS REFERRED TO THE EXECUTIVE (IF ANY)

None.

9. CONSIDERATION OF REPORTS FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE OR SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEES (IF ANY)

None.

10. OUR PLAN FOR BARNET - DELIVERY AND OUTCOMES FRAMEWORK, Q2 2023-24

Councillor Barry Rawlings Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources & Effective Council introduced the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

DECISION:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

Noted the contents of Our Plan for Barnet – Delivery and Outcomes Framework, Q2 2023-24 Report.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

11. CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER REPORT - 2023/24 QUARTER 2 FINANCIAL FORECAST AND 2023/24 BUDGET MANAGEMENT

Councillor Barry Rawlings Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources & Effective Council introduced the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

DECISION:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

Noted:

- 1. The forecast outturn for 2023/24 against the Council's revenue budget;.
- 2. The current use of reserves,
- 3. The expenditure against capital budgets in the year;
- 4. The current debt position.

Approved:

5. The changes to the existing Capital Programme in relation to additions and slippage as set out in section 4.4-4.20 in accordance with the virement rules;

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

12. CHILDCARE SUFFICIENCY ASSESSMENT

Councillor Pauline Coakley Webb, Cabinet Member for Family Friendly Barnet. introduced the report and Officers joined the meeting to summarise the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

DECISION:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

Noted and agreed the following;

- a. The Child Care Sufficiency Assessment report at Appendix 1.
- b. In March 2023 the Government announced that there will be an extension of the Free Early Years Childcare Offer for children under five and Primary School wraparound care for Barnet's young people.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

13. CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING

STRATEGY CONSULTATION

Councillor Pauline Coakley Webb, Cabinet Member for Family Friendly Barnet. introduced the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

DECISION:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

- 1. Approved a public consultation to be conducted on the Children and Young People's Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy.
- 2. Noted the Draft Children and Young People's Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2023-2027 (Appendix A).

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

14. LPS BLOCKS - SILK HOUSE AND SHOELANDS COURT AND WIDER AREA, STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE

The Chair welcomed Officers to present the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

DECISION:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

- 1. Noted the results of the resident engagement exercise contained in the Resident Engagement Report (Appendix C).
- 2. Approved the option to progress the redevelopment of Silk House and Shoelands Court up to planning submission and Outline Business Case.
- 3. Noted that this will be funded from the HRA 250 budget in accordance with the HRA 250 budget allocation as agreed at October 2023 Capital Strategy Board, and by the remaining One Public Estate budget.
- 4. Approved that Barnet Homes procure and appointment a design team within the approved budget to design a scheme up to planning submission for the redevelopment of Silk House and Shoelands Court, incorporating a study of potential enhancement opportunities in the wider area.
- 5. Approved the development of offers for the leasehold acquisitions and delegate approval of the offers to the Director of Growth in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Homes and Regeneration.
- 6. Approved the commencement of negotiations with leaseholders on the basis of the approved offers and delegate approval of the individual acquisitions to the Director of Growth.
- 7. Noted that in the event that agreement cannot be reached a further report may be submitted to seek a resolution to commence a Compulsory Purchase Order.

- 8. Delegated authority to the Director of Growth to take the necessary action to appropriate the land if this is considered necessary.
- 9. Noted the continuation of discussions with stakeholders within the wider area.
- 10. Approved the commencement of proactively moving tenants out of Silk House and Shoelands Court.
- 11. Delegated authority to the Director of Growth, in the execution of the above, to take account of the Equalities Impact Assessment which is to be carried out.
- 12. Noted the Exempt report and Exempt Appendix D Strategic Outline Case.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

15. LPS BLOCKS - STANHOPE AND HOLMSDALE HOUSE STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE

The Chair welcomed Officers to present the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

DECISION:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

- 1. Noted the results of the resident engagement exercise contained in the Resident Engagement Report (Appendix C).
- 2. Approved the option to progress the redevelopment of Stanhope and Holmsdale House up to planning submission and Outline Business Case.
- 3. Noted that this will be funded from the HRA 250 budget in accordance with the HRA 250 budget allocation as agreed at October 2023 Capital Strategy Board.
- 4. Approved that Barnet Homes procure and appointment a design team within the approved budget to design a scheme up to planning submission for the redevelopment of Stanhope and Holmsdale House
- 5. Approved the development of offers for the leasehold acquisitions and delegate approval of the offers to the Director of Growth in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Homes and Regeneration.
- 6. Approved the commencement of negotiations with leaseholders on the basis of the approved offers and delegate approval of the individual acquisitions to the Director of Growth.
- 7. Noted that in the event that agreement cannot be reached a further report may be submitted to seek a resolution to commence a Compulsory Purchase Order.
- 8. Delegated authority to the Director of Growth to take the necessary action to appropriate the land if this is considered necessary.
- 9. Approved the commencement of proactively moving tenants out of Stanhope and Holmsdale House.
- 10. Delegated authority to the Director of Growth, in the execution of the above, to take account of the Equalities Impact Assessments which are to be carried out.

11. Noted the Exempt report and Exempt Appendix D Strategic Outline Case.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

16. GREAT NORTH LEISURE PARK (GNLP) AND FINCHLEY LIDO LEISURE CENTRE OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE

Councillor Ammar Naqvi, Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Arts & Sports introduced the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations and noted the following amendments to recommendations 1, 2 and 5 which was approved by Members to read as below;

Recommendation 1: Note the results of the public consultation located in Appendix B *and the exempt information.*

Recommendation 2: Approve a new leisure centre to be redeveloped on the disused bowling green site *(subject to planning and other consents)* and approves progressing Option B as the preferred facility mix (table in section 1.32) subject to affordability.

Recommendation 5: Delegate to the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Arts & Sports authority to consider and have regard to the *current* equality impact assessment *and the one* to be obtained in finalising *matters and the* documents referred to in recommendation no 2 and 6 as appropriate.

DECISION:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

- 1. Noted the results of the public consultation located in Appendix B and the exempt information.
- 2. Approved a new leisure centre to be redeveloped on the disused bowling green site (subject to planning and other consents) and approves progressing Option B as the preferred facility mix (table in section 1.32) subject to affordability.
- 3. Noted that additional investment is required to deliver Option B and that a funding model which assesses the use of CIL and/or borrowing will be progressed, which may require re-profiling of existing capital commitments and/or prioritising revenue funding to support borrowing.
- 4. Approved the principle of the proposed Development Agreement to govern the delivery of the proposed new leisure centre and the variation of the headlease of GNLP as described in this report.
- 5. Delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Arts & Sports authority to consider and have regard to the current equality impact assessment and the one to be obtained in finalising matters and documents referred to in recommendation no 2 and 6 as appropriate.
- 6. Delegated the finalisation of the proposed Development Agreement and the agreement of any further legal documentation required in order to give

effect to the matters contemplated in the Development Agreement, and entry into the consequent legal arrangements, to the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Arts & Sports.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

17. AUTHORISATION TO PROCURE A PRINCIPAL CONTRACTOR FOR ENERGY SAVING WORKS ON OPERATIONAL ASSETS USING LBB'S PROCUREMENT PROCESSES

Councillor Alan Schneiderman, Cabinet Member for Environment & Climate Change introduced the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

DECISION:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

- 1. Approved the decision to procure a lead retrofit contractor through a Council approved procurement route for a period of 5-years, with an option to extend for up to 2 years.
- 2. Delegated the authority to appoint a lead contractor and enter call-off contract(s), subject to the completion of the procurement process, to the Director of Growth.
- 3. Delegated authority to the Director of Growth, to extend the call-off contract(s) by up to a further 2 years, should that be required.
- 4. Delegated authority to the Assistant Director, Estates and Decarbonisation to sign any Access Agreement as required by a framework provider and make the necessary arrangements to allow the Council to access a selected Framework Agreement as required.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

18. AUTHORISATION FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF ENERGY SUPPLIES & ANCILLARY SERVICES

Councillor Barry Rawlings Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Resources & Effective Council introduced the report.

Following discussion, the Chair moved to vote on the recommendations.

DECISION:

RESOLVED that Cabinet:

- 1. Noted the exempt information and approved the following actions:
- a) The Council's participation in the LASER Energy Fully Managed Framework for the flexible procurement of natural gas, electricity & ancillary services for the supply period April 2025 to March 2029. The estimated total expenditure of the supply to be called off under the framework as noted in section 5.3 is approximately £39 million pounds over 4 years.
- b) Delegated authority to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council, to procure and complete gas and electricity supply contracts, via the LASER framework.
- c) Delegated authority to the Deputy Chief Executive as part of the procurement process, to investigate and prioritise appropriately REGO backed (Renewable Guarantees of Origin) certified renewable electricity supplies, subject to affordability.

The report set out the options considered, if any, and the reasons for the recommendations and the decision.

19. CABINET FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISION SCHEDULE

Cabinet noted the Forward Plan – Key Decision Schedule.

20. URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)

None.

The meeting finished at 8.40 pm

Proper Officer

This document outlines the decisions taken at the above Cabinet meeting. Unless otherwise indicated, executive decisions listed in this document will come into force and may then be implemented 5 clear working days after publication of this document unless the decision is called in.

Five Members of the Council can call in a decision of the Cabinet, which has been taken but not implemented. For matters impacting a particular ward, a ward Councillor must be included in the 5 signatures. Call-in must be by notification to the Monitoring Officer or Head of Governance in writing signed by all five Members (<u>Part 3C - Committee</u> <u>Procedure Rules of the Council's Constitution</u>).

Date of Publication:	15 th November 2023
Last Date for Call-In:	22 nd November 2023, 5PM
	(Please note that Call-in may not apply to all
	decisions).
Date decision can be implemented	23 rd November 2023
if not called in:	
Contact:	Head of Governance:
	Andrew.Charlwood@barnet.gov.uk